
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, September 25, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, 
Cedarburg, WI, in the Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 
Excused - 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members   
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 
Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe 
 
Council Member Dick Dieffenbach 

   
5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - September 11, 2017 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
* A. Consider Resolution No. 2017-16 to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 

2025 for the 13.38 acre west portion of the 18.70 acre parcel located 
approximately 506’ south of Highway 60 from the High Density Residential 
Elderly Housing (10.9 to 20 units per acre) Use Classification to the High Density 
Residential (10.9 to 16.1 units per acre) Use Classification; and action thereon 
(Plan Comm. 08-07-17) 

 
* B. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-20 to rezone the above property from Temporary 

RS-1 Single-Family Residential District to RM-2/PUD Multiple-Family Residential 
District/Planned Unit Development Overlay District; and action thereon (Plan 
Comm. 08-07-17) 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 55



9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider bids received for the Western Road communications monopole 

construction; and action thereon 
 
* B. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-21 amending Sec. 10-1-27(a) of the Municipal 

Code to prohibit parking on Center Street adjacent to the Interurban Trail 
crossing; and action thereon (Public Works and Sewerage Commission 
09/14/17) 

 
* C. Consider participation in Community Rivers Program with Riveredge Nature 

Center; and action thereon 
 
* D. Consider payment of bills for the period 09/07/17 through 09/14/17, transfers for 

the period 09/06/17 through 09/19/17, and payroll for the period 08/27/17 through 
09/07/17; and action thereon 

 
*** E. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    
   1. Consider approval of new Operators License application for the period 

ending June 30, 2018 for Allison E. Wray; and action thereon 
 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operators License applications for the 

period ending June 30, 2018 for Kimberly R. Eggleston and Jennifer P. 
Smith; and action thereon 

  
10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
   
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
12.     ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to discuss the 
Frasher Shabani claim against the City for a vehicle accident that occurred on January 
15, 2016, and 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, 
the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
consider a Developer’s Agreement with HSI regarding the St. Francis Borgia site.  
Approval of September 11, 2017 closed session minutes. 

 

Page 2 of 55



13. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
14. Consider possible settlement of the Frasher Shabani claim against the City for a vehicle 

accident that occurred on January 15, 2016; and action thereon 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 

 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 
09/21/17 ckm  

Page 3 of 55

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 

  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170911-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                September 11, 2017 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, September 11, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Acting Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Council Members Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, 

Rick Verhaalen, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe 
 
                          Excused - Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John Czarnecki, Mitch 

Regenfuss 
                                                   
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Director of Engineering and Public Works Tom Wiza, 
Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Acting Mayor O’Keefe’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting 
was provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News 
Graphic, to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with 
the Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide 
their input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
Council Member O’Keefe stated as Acting Mayor he is retaining his right to vote as Council 
member of the 7th Aldermanic District. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve 
the minutes from the August 28, 2017 meeting.  Motion carried without a negative vote with 
Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused.  
 
COMMENTS & SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-15 COMMENDING FIDDLEHEADS FOR SMALL 
BUSINESS OF THE YEAR AWARD; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2017-15 commending Fiddleheads for Small Business of the Year Award.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused.  
 

Page 4 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170911-2 
September 11, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER BIDS RECEIVED FOR THE 2017 ASPHALT PAVEMENT REPAIR 
PROGRAM; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that $45,000 was budgeted for asphalt repairs and $24,606 of this has 
already been expended for the chip sealing of Pioneer Road.  However, this project is small and will 
be within budget, as the patch at the Wastewater Plant will come out of their budget.  A total of four 
bids were received to repair work on Buchanan Street, Fox Pointe Avenue, London Court, and the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The lowest responsive bid was submitted by Poblocki Paving 
Corporation in the amount of $26,266.00.      
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to award the 2017 
asphalt pavement repair program to Poblocki Paving Corporation in the total amount of $26,266.00.  
Motion carried without a negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused. 
 
CONSIDER EXTENSION OF CASH FARM LEASE WITH RODEN ECHO VALLEY, LLC 
FOR 2018; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that the City has had an annual cash farm lease with Robert Roden for 47 
acres at 6603 Highway 60 since 1999.  While the land is eventually intended to be used for business 
park development, there is a little chance of development occurring in 2018.  Mr. Roden has agreed 
to an increase in rent to $70 acre.  Director Wiza said that Mr. Roden has been an exceptional renter 
who rotates his crops, controls weeds, and does not track mud on Highway 60. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that he recommended renewal of the lease because the property has 
no utilities and it will be some time before any work can begin.   
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, Director Wiza explained that the soil boring that 
was done in 1998 is still good.  If any further testing would need to be done, the City would need to 
buy out that portion of the crops. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to extend the cash 
farm lease with Roden Echo Valley, LLC at the rental fee of $70 per acre.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused. 
 
CONSIDER MAYOR KINZEL’S REAPPOINTMENT OF JOSEPH DORR AND BLAINE 
HILGENDORF TO THE LIGHT AND WATER COMMISSION (TERMS EXPIRE 09/30/20) 
AND APPOINTMENT OF KERRY THARP TO THE PUBLIC ART COMMISSION 
(TERM EXPIRES 04/30/19); AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that the Light & Water Commissioners serve for a long time 
and he suggested that the City consider term limits for Board, Commission and Committee 
members in the future. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that depth of experience is important on the Light and Water 
Commission. 
 

Page 5 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170911-3 
September 11, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Thome explained that there is a nice mix of people on the Light and Water 
Commission who hold a great wealth of information. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve Mayor 
Kinzel’s reappointment of Joseph Dorr and Blaine Hilgendorf to the Light and Water Commission 
(terms expire 9/30/20) and the appointment of Kerry Tharp to the Public Art Commission (term 
expires 4/30/19).  Motion carried without a negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and 
Regenfuss excused. 
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS FOR THE PERIOD 08/31/17 THROUGH 09/05/17, 
TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 08/23/17 THROUGH 09/05/17, AND PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD 08/13/17 THROUGH 08/26/17; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes 
explained that the $20,000 payment to Emerald Tree Care is for treatment of street trees. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach questioned the need for three Costco memberships.  City 
Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the cards are issued to one person and it is too 
difficult to have one person be available for each visit to Costco for supplies. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s inquiry into the payment to Waste Management for 
street sweepings, Director Wiza explained that sediment collected by the street sweeper needs to be 
hauled to Waste Management along with catch basin refuse, as required by the DNR.  The leaves 
that are collected in the fall are composted.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
payment of bills for the period 08/31/17 through 09/05/17, transfers for the period 08/23/17 through 
09/05/17, and payroll for the period 08/13/17 through 08/26/17.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote with Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused. 
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve new 
Operators License applications for the period ending June 30, 2018 for Margaret Dobson, Madilyn 
M. Hill, Jake E. Krajenka, John M. Padberg, and Matthew T. Robinson.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
renewal Operators License applications for the period ending June 30, 2018 for Marilyn S. Fisher, 
Christina N. Gabrielson, Josh P. McCutcheon, Jeffrey O. Peterson, and Hailey E. Weissinger.  
Motion carried without a negative vote with Council Member Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that she is in the process of budget meetings with 
Department Heads.  Budget presentations will be made at the October 9 Common Council meeting 

Page 6 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170911-4 
September 11, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
and the Public Hearing will be held at the October 30 meeting.  Council Member Dieffenbach asked 
to receive the draft budget as early as possible prior to the meeting. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None  
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Arnett explained that the Branding Committee received 15 responses to their 
RFPs.  The Committee finished their fifth and final interview today and will make a decision within 
a week. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Director Wiza explained that Mercury 
Marine and the City have been working together on the final trucking plan to remove the bladders 
from Adlai Horn Park.  In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Director Wiza stated that 
he has documented the status of the current roads to assess any damage after the removal. 
   
MAYOR’S REPORT - None  
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Dieffenbach, to adjourn to 
closed session at 7:22 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
discuss possible negotiations with BMO Harris Bank for the purchase of property on Columbia 
Road.  Approval of closed session minutes of 8/28/17.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call 
vote with Council Members Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Thome, and O'Keefe voting aye and 
Council Members Czarnecki and Regenfuss excused. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to reconvene 
to open session at 7:43 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote with Council Members 
Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Thome, and O'Keefe voting aye and Council Members Czarnecki 
and Regenfuss excused. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:43 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Council Members Czarnecki and 
Regenfuss excused.  
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

Page 7 of 55



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  September 25, 2017                                            ITEM NO:  8. A. & 8. B. 
 

TITLE:  

A. Consider Resolution No. 2017-16 to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for the 

13.38 acre west portion of the 18.70 acre parcel located approximately 506’ south of Highway 

60 from the High Density Residential Elderly Housing (10.9 to 20 units per acre) Use 

Classification to the High Density Residential (10.9 to 16.1 units per acre) Use Classification; 

and action thereon (Plan Comm. 08-07-17) 

 

B. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-20 to rezone the above property from Temporary RS-1 Single-

Family Residential District to RM-2/PUD Multiple-Family Residential District/Planned Unit 

Development Overlay District; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 08-07-17) 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  

Council Members are reminded that before any zoning action can take place State law requires that 

the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the proposed Zoning be consistent with each other. Our 

review of the Stroebel Multi-Family project reveals that while the existing use classification for his site 

is similar to the use being proposed, it differs in that the existing classification targets elderly housing 

only and the proposal before you is for high density housing without restriction on age. Accordingly, the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan 2025 must be amended before proceeding ahead with the rezoning 

petition. Specifically, Resolution 2017-16 will serve to reclassify the future use of this site from High 

Density Elderly Housing at a density of up to 20 units per acre to High Density Multiple-Family at a 

density not to exceed 16.1 units per acre. 

 

This project will consist of 12 sixteen-unit apartment buildings for a total of 192 units at a density of 

10.3 units/gross acres or 14.9 units/net acre (Net acreage = Gross acreage minus right-of-way 

dedication and conservancy area).  The project will be served by a private driveway/parking system 

including 383 parking stalls, 192 of which will be enclosed and the remaining 191 will be surface stalls, 

resulting in a count of 2 parking stalls per unit. City Code requires 1.5 stalls per unit. The zoning 

required to support this project is shown in the attached Ordinance No. 2017- 20 as RM-2/PUD 

Residential Multiple-Family District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District. 

 

Nonconformity to Standards: 

As part of the PUD request, the applicant is seeking your recommendation to adjust the following 

standards of the underlying Rm-2 basic use district: 

 

1. Code Requirement – Maximum 8 Units per Structure 

 Nonconformity – all buildings will have 16 units 

 

Procedure: 

Since this project was reviewed by the Plan Commission and recommended for approval, the next step 

in the process is for the public hearing on the Land Use Plan amendment and then the public hearing 

on the rezoning request to consider public comment before rendering your decisions. If these requests 

are approved, the applicant will then finalize the details of his site, architectural, landscaping, storm 
Page 8 of 55



water management and exterior lighting plans and submit them to the Plan Commission for their 

review and approval.  

 

Impact fee: 

192 units @ 5,202.34 per unit = $998,849.28 due at the time of building permit application. 

 

Staff Comments: 

Since the location of this site is far removed from our downtown business and service area and even 

further from the south business district, it is tough to argue that it is within walking distance to those 

shopping environments. However, the Land Use Plan does classify the property directly to the north as 

commercial to address the every-day shopping needs and services of this project and other 

development in the area. Furthermore, as we are now nearing the planning stage for the Highway 60 

Business Park, this project will help serve the residential needs of the employment base for that park.  

 

Mr. Stroebel’s project will be served by sewer and water facilities extended from The Glen at Cedar 

Creek subdivision. These facilities will now be extended through this site to the north property line and 

made available to serve the future commercial development of those lands. With respect to the sewer 

system, Mr. Stroebel has addressed the concerns City Engineer Tom Wiza. 

 

Staff notes that this site is downstream from several large tracks of undeveloped parcels and therefore 

the applicant will need to work closely with our City Engineer to insure proper grading and storm water 

management. Furthermore, since the applicant’s plans now show an extensive pond in the upland 

conservancy area at the east end of this site, DNR approval will be needed. Since the pond will likely 

require extensive tree cutting and shrubbery removal, a Tree Cutting and Clearing Permit from the City 

will also be required. This permit will be reviewed by the City Forester before being submitted to this 

Commission for your review and recommendation. The Common Council will make the final decision.  

 

The following will need to be addressed: 

 

 The applicant will be required to loop the water main around the east side of the development. 

 Water Superintendent Tim Martin advised that a second feed will be required from Sheboygan 

Road through the proposed Geo-grid access. 

 The applicant will be required to sprinkler the buildings with monitoring. 

 The Fire Department will need to confirm radius of driveways is adequate for the large fire 

trucks. 

 The applicant will need to meet with the Fire Department to determine fire hydrant location.  

 WDNR, City Plan Commission and Common Council approval of a Tree Cutting and Clearing 

Plan for the removal of trees in preparation for the work within the C-4 District. 

 The applicant having the Floodplain, Wetlands and Upland Conservancy District field verified 

and staked.  

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

At their August 7, 2017 meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval by unanimous vote. 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:   

Impact Fees - 192 units @ $5,202.34/unit = $998,849.28 
Page 9 of 55



 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Rezoning  Petition 
 Concept Site and Architectural Plans 
 Ordinance No. 2017-20 
 Resolution No. 2017-16 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  S. Duane Stroebel, Jr. 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 10 of 55



 

 

CITY OF CEDARBURG 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-16 

 

A Resolution Amending the City of Cedarburg  

Comprehensive Land Use Plan - 2025 

for the 13.38 Acre West Portion of the  18.70 Acre Parcel Located  

on the East Side of Sheboygan Road Approximately 506’ South of Highway 60 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg, pursuant to the provisions of Section 62.23 of the Wisconsin 

Statutes, has created a City Plan Commission; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has prepared a plan for the physical development of the City of 

Cedarburg and environs, said plan known as The City of Cedarburg Smart Growth Comprehensive Plan -2025 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission on the 7
th

 day of January 2008 recommended the 

aforementioned Comprehensive Plan and on the 25
th

 day of February 2008 the Common Council adopted the 

plan; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the adopted Land Use Plan recommends High Density Residential Elderly Housing (10.9 

to 20 units per acre) Use as shown on the Land Use Map; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a proposed multi-family apartment housing project on this property would require 

amending the High Density Residential Elderly Housing (10.9 to 20 units per acre) Use to the High Density 

Residential (10.9 to 16.1 units per acre) Use classification; and    

 

 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed the requested amendment on August 7, 2017, and the 

Common Council held a public hearing on September 25, 2017 to consider amending the Plan and found such 

change to be appropriate and compatible with the existing and future nearby uses. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 66.1001(4)(b) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes, the City of Cedarburg Common Council on the 25
th

 day of September 2017, hereby amends The City 

of Cedarburg Smart Growth Comprehensive Land Use Plan - 2025, as follows:  the 13.38 acre west portion of 

the of the 18.70 acre parcel directly north of  The Glen at Cedar Creek Subdivision is hereby classified as High 

Density Residential (10.9 to 16.1 units per acre) Use in the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025. 

  

 Passed and adopted this 25
th

 day of September 2017. 

 

        _________________________________ 

        Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

___________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

Page 11 of 55



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

ORDINANCE NO.  2017-20 

 

An Ordinance Rezoning 13.38 Acres of the 18.70 Acre Parcel 

Located on the East Side of Sheboygan Road 

Approximately 506’ South of Highway 60 

 

The proposed ordinance having been submitted to the City Plan Commission for recommendation and notice 

having been given pursuant to Wis. Statute, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, does 

hereby ordain as follows:      

 

The following described real estate situated in the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, presently zoned 

Temporary Rs-1 Single Family Residential District is hereby rezoned to Rm-2/PUD Multiple-

Family Residential/Planned Unit Development Overlay District: 

 

Part of the Northwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 23, Town 10 North, Range 21 East, in the 

City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Northwest ¼ Section; thence South 02°13’26” East 

along the west line of said ¼ Section a distance of 955.00 feet to the point of beginning of the lands 

to be described; thence North 87°12’03” East 33.00 feet to a point; thence North 00°33’41”West 

250.51 feet to a point; thence North 87°12’03” East 905.03 feet to a point; thence South 00°00’00” 

East 30.08 feet to a point; thence South 05°00’02” East 541.55 feet to a point; thence South 

68°11’55” West 36.31 feet to a point; thence South 44’59’59” West 28.61 feet to a point; thence 

South 11°18’34” West 18.39 feet to a point in the South line of the Northwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ 

of said Section 23; thence South 87°08’31” West along said South line 910.85 feet to a point in the 

West line of said Northwest ¼ Section; thence North 02°13’26” West along said West line 371.04 

feet to the point of beginning. 

 

Said land contains 582,998 square feet or 13.38 acres.  
 

 This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 25
th

 day of September 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:   

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 
 

Page 12 of 55



Page 13 of 55



Page 14 of 55



Page 15 of 55



Page 16 of 55



Page 17 of 55



Page 18 of 55



Page 19 of 55



Page 20 of 55



Page 21 of 55



Page 22 of 55



Page 23 of 55



Page 24 of 55



Page 25 of 55



Page 26 of 55



Page 27 of 55



Page 28 of 55



Page 29 of 55



Page 30 of 55



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: September 25, 2017                                                                    ITEM NO:  9. A. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider bids received for the Western Road communications monopole construction; and action 

thereon. 

 

    

ISSUE SUMMARY: Staff advertised for and received bids for construction of the Western Road 

communications monopole. A total of six bids were received, with the low bid coming from Vinco, Inc. in the 

amount of $291,160.00. 

 

Vinco is a well-established communications tower manufacturer, they were in attendance at the pre-bid 

meeting, and SEH has recommended award to them.      

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends award of the Western Road communications monopole 

construction to Vinco based on their low lump sum bid of $291,160.00.     

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $291,160.00 plus engineering and construction inspection costs. 

 

  

 

ATTACHMENTS: SEH bid award recommendation 

                                  Bid tabulation                                  

                                                                    

              

                                   

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza/Christy Mertes 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31 of 55



Page 32 of 55



Page 33 of 55



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: September 25, 2017                                                              ITEM NO:  9. B. 

 

  

TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2017-21 amending Section 10-1-27(a) of the Municipal Code to prohibit 

parking on Center Street adjacent to the Interurban Trail crossing; and action thereon. (Public Works and 

Sewerage Comm. 09/14/17) 

 

           

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: The City has received several complaints about poor sight distance at the Interurban Trail 

crossing on Center Street. When large vehicles are parked close to the trail, motorists have a difficult time 

seeing trail users and vice versa. Because parking is at a premium in this area, providing good sight distance has 

to be balanced against the loss of street parking. 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach has discussed options with neighboring businesses and residents, and in the end 

we have come up with a street parking revision which will only eliminate one parking space while significantly 

improving the sight distance.  

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2017-21.    

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission recommended adjusting the parking limits adjacent to the trail as stated in the Ordinance.  

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $100 for traffic paint.    

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unofficial Minutes of  September 14, 2017 Public Works/Sewerage Commission meeting 

 Copy of proposed ordinance 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Council Member Dieffenbach with input from residents. 

 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 

 
 

 

Page 34 of 55



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-21 

  

An Ordinance Prohibiting Parking on Center Street 

Adjacent to the Interurban Trail Crossing 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, does hereby ordain as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  Section 10-1-27 (Parking Prohibited Zones) of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedarburg is hereby amended as follows: 

 

(a) Parking Prohibited Zones.  No person shall park or leave standing any vehicle upon any of the 

following highways, streets or parts thereof, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 

actually engaged in receiving or discharging passengers.  Either the operator or owner of any 

vehicle may be held responsible for the violation of this section. 

 

 On the north side of Center Street 32 feet east and 15 feet west of the Interurban 

Trail, and on the south side of Center Street 38 feet east and 25 feet west of the 

Interurban Trail. 

  

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided by 

law. 

 

Passed and adopted this 25
th

 day of September 2017. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand 

Page 35 of 55



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170914-2 
September 14, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

Mr. Schulz would like it placed on the next agenda.  He wants to know who enforces this 
and who is responsible.  He is not afraid to take this to another level if he has too.    
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FROM RESIDENT AT N104 W7490 ST. JAMES COURT FOR 
CITY TO REPLACE DRIVE APPROACH HAVED BY CITY STREET TREE;  AND 
ACTION THERE ON 
 
Director Wiza explained that resident at N104 W7490 St. James Court has requested that 
the City replace his concrete driveway approach because it is substantially heaved by a 
City street tree.  Mr. Dan Stair was present and explained how the rain water pools on the 
sidewalk and that it freezes.  He asked about mud jacking the sidewalk.  Pictures were 
presented to show about a 2 inch area that has heaved.   
  
The City does have an annual sidewalk program where we eliminate trip hazards.  This 
street is also on the schedule for replacement in 2018.   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Slavin, seconded by Council Member Mike O’Keefe to 
make the fix to his drive approach next year during the street and utility project.  Motion 
carried unanimously with Commissioner Dries and Mayor Kinzel excused and 
Commissioner Schumacher absent.  
 
CONSIDER STREET PARKING REVISIONS ON CENTER STREET JUST WEST OF 
HANOVER AND ADJACENT TO THE INTERURBAN TRAIN; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that Council Member Dick Dieffenbach had forwarded a proposal 
to address ongoing parking concerns on Center Street just west of Hanover Avenue.  
Parking issues in this area have been contentious and there are legitimate competing 
goals that neighbors and businesses have expressed.  Concerns are the pedestrian and 
bicycle safety at the bike path crossing, shortage of parking at the library, historical society 
depot including the area businesses.  Center Street is narrow and should parking be 
allowed on both sides?  Council Member Dick Dieffenbach’s proposal includes eliminating 
one parking spot on both east and west approached to the Interurban Trail and adding two 
spaces on the north side of Center Street between Hanover Ave and the Library/Interurban 
Deport driveway.   
 
Discussion was held and Commissioner Guse opposed adding two spots on Center Street.  
Assistant Fire Chief William Hintz gave several examples on why adding parking spots on 
Center Street would not be beneficial especially trying to maneuver the fire department’s 
ladder truck and snow plowing efforts.   
 
Mary Velnetske of the Historical Society was present and expressed concerns about losing 
a parking space in front of the depot.  She also expressed concerns that the library has not 
been cooperative with parking either.   
 
Discussions were held about the municipal parking lot on Center and Hanover.  Should 
there be better signage?    Should the two hour parking on Hanover Ave in front of 
LaBudde be reconsidered to no restrictions?   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Slavin to eliminate one 

Page 36 of 55



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170914-3 
September 14, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

parking spot on both east and west side of the interurban trail and paint yellow in the curb 
area and to make the crossing more distinctive.  Motion carried unanimously with 
Commissioner Dries and Mayor Kinzel excused and Commissioner Schumacher absent.  
 

PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED 2018 BUDGET FOR ENGINEERING, PUBLIC  
WORKS AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director of Engineering and Public Works Tom Wiza, Water Recycling Center 
Superintendent Eric Hackert and Public Works Superintendent Joel Bublitz each presented 
their department budget and budgetary items. Public Works Secretary Kim Gordon spoke 
on behalf of cemeteries.   Although we have been requested to maintain a zero increase, 
there are things out of our control and Commissioner Guse praised them for still 
maintaining a zero increase. Superintendent Eric Hackert stated Waste Water is now going 
to be called Water Recycling Center.  Motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded 
by Commissioner Beck to recommend the Council to accept the budget as presented.  
Motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Dries and Mayor Kinzel excused and 
Commissioner Schumacher absent.  
 
UPDATE ON PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 
 
Director Wiza showed the Asphalt bids.  There were 4 bids and Poblocki Paving Corp was 
awarded the contract at the September 11, 2017 Common Council meeting.  They came in 
with the lowest bid at $26,266.  This is for Buchanan Street, Fox Pointe Ave, London Court 
and Water Recycling Center 
 
Superintendent Bublitz explained that they are still working on street painting, catch basins 
and street sweeping.  They are going around the city doing the second round of crack 
sealing and leaf pick up will start soon.  They are also helping out Park and Forestry when 
they can 
 
Superintendent Bublitz expressed he would like some guidance and clarification of special 
brush pick-ups.  What is a special pick up?  Fourth of July, Graduation, County Fair?   
 
Superintendent Bublitz also requested guidance for when the flags should be placed.  He 
would like both of these items on the agenda for next time. 
 
UPDATE ON SEWERAGE PLANT OPERATIONS AND DISCUSSION OF MONTHLY 
REPORTS 
 
Water Recycling Center Superintendent Hackert discussed the effluent data report from 
June, July and August 2017. 
 
Third round of interviews done and they hired Bill Hess but another person has left so  
Superintendent Hackert continues to interview.   
 
New Jet Vac truck is here and they continue to work on catch basins.   
 
IDENTIFY FUTRE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Page 37 of 55



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:       September 25, 2017                                          ITEM NO:  9. C. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider participation in Community Rivers Program with Riveredge Nature Center; and action 

thereon 

 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Riveredge Nature Center has started the Community Rivers Program in 2017 with 

Newburg as the pilot municipality.  Riveredge is asking the City to participate in the program for 2018 and 

supplied us with the following quote for the program.  The theme is inspire, inform and engage.  The following 

pages describe the programs that would be provided to the residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $8,000 added to the 2018 budget 

  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Riveredge proposal 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mandie Zopp, 375-2715 

 
      

 

 

 

Page 38 of 55



Community Rivers Program 
Proposal – City of Cedarburg 

Increasing Water Quality through Education & Outreach 

in Your Community 

 

Riveredge Nature Center builds nature-rich partnerships that help 

improve the health of our communities and natural world. Through 

the Community Rivers Program (CRP), Riveredge is connecting rural and suburban communities 

within the upper Milwaukee River watershed to their local water resources to inspire appreciation, 

educate, and enable positive land management changes. 

Become a Healthy River Community 

 
 

This program is endorsed by the following organizations: Fund for Lake Michigan, Southeastern 

Wisconsin Watersheds Trust, Milwaukee Riverkeeper, Milwaukee Metro Sewerage District, Prairie 

Nursery, Treasures of Oz, Ozaukee Washington Land Trust, and Ozaukee and Washington Counties. 

 

 

 

 

Inspire 

Help residents 
develop a passion 
for and connection 
with the Milwaukee 

River watershed 
right in their own 

backyards 

 

Inform 

Educate residents on 
how to install rain 

barrels, green 
infrastructure, 

planting with native 
species, composting 

and more! 
 

 

Engage 

Working hand-in-
hand to empower 
communities and 
their residents to 
implement best 

practices for 
keeping their river 
healthy and clean. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39 of 55



PROPOSED PARTNERSHIP 
 

Riveredge Nature Center recommends the following CRP program package for City of Cedarburg. 

This package provides community residents and businesses with inspirational and educational 

programs that will help to create a healthier Milwaukee River watershed.   The direct service fee for 

the package of programs listed below is $8,000. 

Inspirational Programs 

Kayak/Canoe Trip (1 per year) - Join Riveredge to see the Milwaukee River watershed from a whole new 

view, on kayak. Trips will be conducted on rivers/streams within the partnering community; however, if this is 

not possible, trips that focus on the greater Milwaukee River watershed and Cedar Creek Sub-watershed will 

be conducted. 

 

Community Events (presence at 3/year) – Bring the CRP to Cedarburg events. Riveredge will host an 

informational booth with hands-on activities that will inspire participants to have fun and become water 

stewards.   

Watershed Bus Tour (1 per year) – Learn about land use practices in Upper Milwaukee River watershed 

(which includes the Cedar Creek Sub-watershed) and how even the smallest changes in your landscape can 

influence water quality.  

Informational/Educational Program 

Landscaping Workshop  (1 per year) - Lean how to design and landscape your yard with native plants. 

Create designs for your own rain garden, prairie, and/or flower garden that birds and butterflies will enjoy. 

Landscaping with native plants is also a great way to reduce flooding and decrease pollution going into nearby 

waterways. 

 

Rain Barrel Workshop (1 per year) - Riveredge Nature Center wants to help our communities take action to 

manage storm-water and improve water quality. Families are invited to come build their very own rain barrel 

with step by step instruction on how to create and then put your rain barrel to use! Workshop supplies are such 

that each family will be allowed one barrel per registration fee. 

Community Engagement 

River Clean-up Program (1 per year) - Help keep the Milwaukee River and its shoreline clean and healthy 

by joining in a river clean-up along Cedar Creek. 

Stormwater Stenciling Event (1 per year)  – Have fun painting and marking stormwater drains that will 

increase Cedarburg resident awareness of what flows into our waterways.  

Property Consultations (by Riveredge Land Managers, 8 hrs/year) - Want expert advice on what to plant on 

your property?  Let Riveredge help you. With over a decade of experience, our Land Manager will assist you 

in planning your landscape. Municipalities may choose to have consultation on public owned land or to 

provide the consultation to private land owners. 

Community Recognition 

“Healthy River Community” signs (4 signs/community) – Be recognized for the communities’ values to 

have clean and healthy waterways that enhance habitat for wildlife. 

 

 

Page 40 of 55



Page 41 of 55



Page 42 of 55



Page 43 of 55



Page 44 of 55



Page 45 of 55



Page 46 of 55



Page 47 of 55



Page 48 of 55



Page 49 of 55



Page 50 of 55



Page 51 of 55



Page 52 of 55



Page 53 of 55



Page 54 of 55



Page 55 of 55


	Agenda 09-25-17
	CC Minutes 09-11-17
	Blue Sheet - Land Use Plan Amendment and Rezoning
	Res 2017-16 - Land Use Plan Amendment
	Ord 2017-20 - Sheboygan Road Rezoning
	Stroebel Rezoning and LU Amendment Attachments
	Blue Sheet - Monopole Bids
	Monopole Attachments
	Blue Sheet - Center Street No Parking
	Ord 2017-21 - Center Street Parking
	PW Minutes 09-14-17
	Blue Sheet - Riveredge Rivers Program
	Riveredge Proposal
	Bills
	City Administrators Report 09 21 17



